
A G E N D A  
 

AGENDA – ORANGE COUNTYWIDE OVERSIGHT BOARD – TUESDAY, APRIL 18, 2023 – PAGE 1 

 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

ORANGE COUNTYWIDE OVERSIGHT BOARD 
 

TUESDAY, APRIL 18,  2 0 2 3 ,  8 : 3 0  A M  
 

CITY OF ORANGE COUNCIL CHAMBERS  
300 E. Chapman Avenue 
Orange, California 92866 

 
HON. BRIAN PROBOLSKY 

Chairman 
 

 HON. STEVE JONES CHARLES BARFIELD 
 Vice Chairman Board Member 
 

STEVE FRANKS LOUIS MCCLURE 
 Board Member Board Member 
 
 DEAN WEST, CPA HON. PHILLIP E. YARBROUGH 
 Board Member Board Member 
 
 
Staff Counsel Clerk of the Board 
Hon. Andrew N. Hamilton, CPA, Auditor-Controller Patrick K. Bobko Kathy Tavoularis 
Kathy Tavoularis 
Chris Nguyen 
   
 
The Orange Countywide Oversight Board welcomes you to this meeting.  This agenda contains a brief general 
description of each item to be considered.  The Board encourages your participation.  If you wish to speak on an item 
contained in the agenda, please complete a Speaker Form identifying the item(s) and deposit it in the Speaker Form 
Return box located next to the Clerk.  If you wish to speak on a matter which does not appear on the agenda, you 
may do so during the Public Comment period at the close of the meeting. Except as otherwise provided by law, no 
action shall be taken on any item not appearing in the agenda.  Speaker Forms are located next to the Speaker Form 
Return box.  When addressing the Board, please state your name for the record prior to providing your comments. 
 
**In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, those requiring accommodation for this meeting should 
notify the Clerk of the Board 72 hours prior to the meeting at (714) 834-2458** 
 
The Orange Countywide Oversight Board encourages the public to participate by submitting emails at 
kathy.tavoularis@ac.ocgov.com by 7:30 AM the day of the meeting, or calling (714) 834-2458 and leaving a 
message before 7:30 AM the day of the meeting, if you want to provide comments on agenda items or other subject 
matters within the Orange Countywide Oversight Board’s jurisdiction. The Orange Countywide Oversight Board 
and Staff thank you in advance for taking all precautions to prevent spreading COVID-19. If you have any 
questions, please contact the Orange County Auditor-Controller’s Office at (714) 834-2458. 
 

All supporting documentation is available for public review online at http://ocauditor.com/ob/ or in person in 
the office of the Auditor-Controller located at 1770 North Broadway, Santa Ana, California 92706  

during regular business hours, 8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday  



A G E N D A  
 

AGENDA – ORANGE COUNTYWIDE OVERSIGHT BOARD – TUESDAY, APRIL 18, 2023 – PAGE 2 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
ORANGE COUNTYWIDE OVERSIGHT BOARD 

 
8 : 3 0  A . M .  

DISCUSSION ITEMS: 
 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3. Approval of the Minutes from January 24, 2023, Regular Meeting 

 
4. Contract Renewal for Dynamic Strategies  

 
5. Adopt Amendment to Board Policies and Procedures  

 
6. Update on La Habra property APN # 018-381-64 
 
COMMENTS & ADJOURNMENT:   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS:   
At this time members of the public may address the Board on any matter not on the agenda but within the 
jurisdiction of the Board.  The Board may limit the length of time each individual may have to address the Board.  
 
STAFF COMMENTS: 

• Next Meeting: Tuesday, July 25, 2023 
 
BOARD COMMENTS:   
 
CLOSED SESSION: 
CS-1.  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION – INITIATION OF 

LITIGATION – Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(4): 
Number of Cases:  One Case 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
NEXT MEETING:   
 
Regular Meeting  July 25, 2023 – 8:30 AM 

 



MI N U T E S 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE  

ORANGE COUNTYWIDE OVERSIGHT BOARD 
 

January 24, 2023, 8:30 a.m. 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

A regular meeting of the Orange Countywide Oversight Board was called to order at 8:35 AM on 
January 24, 2023, by Chairman Probolsky, presiding officer. 

 Present:  7 Chairman:   Brian Probolsky 
Vice Chairman:  Steve Jones 
Board Member:  Charles Barfield* 
Board Member  Steve Frank 
Board Member:  Anil Kukreja 
Board Member:  Dean West  
Board Member:  Phil Yarbrough* 

  
  *Phil Yarbrough arrived at the meeting at 8:40 AM 
 *Charles Barfield left the meeting at 9:15 AM 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Charles Barfield led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance 

3. ADOPT RESOLUTION CONCERNING TELECONFERENCED MEETINGS DURING 
STATE OF EMERGENCY  

Board Member Barfield moved, and Board Member Kukreja seconded to adopt the Resolution 
concerning teleconferenced meetings during the state of emergency. Roll call vote. 

 YES – Probolsky, Jones, Barfield, Franks, Kukreja, West 
 NO – N/A 
 N/A – N/A 
 Absent – Yarbrough 

4. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM JANUARY 17, 2023, REGULAR MEETING  

Board Member West moved, and Board Member Barfield seconded to approve the Minutes from 
the October 19, 2022, Special Meeting 

  YES – Probolsky, Jones, Barfield, Franks, Kukreja, West  
  NO – N/A 
  N/A – N/A 
  Absent – Yarbrough 

 



5. ADOPT RESOLUTION REGARDING DISSOLUTION OF THE CYPRESS SUCCESSOR 
AGENCY 

Board Member Kukreja moved, and Board Member Barfield seconded to approve the Resolution 
requesting the Dissolution of the Cypress Successor Agency. 

YES – Probolsky, Jones, Barfield, Franks, Kukreja, West  
 NO – N/A 
 N/A – N/A 
 Absent – Yarbrough 

*Board Member Yarbrough arrived at the meeting following consideration of Item 5. 

6. APPROVE RESOLUTIONS REGARDING REQUESTS BY SUCCESSOR AGENCIES 
FOR ANNUAL RECOGNIZED OBLIGATION PAYMENT SCHEDULE (ROPS) AND 
ADMINISTRATIVE BUDGET 

Board Member West moved, and Board Member Barfield seconded to approve Resolutions 
Regarding Requests by Successor Agencies for Annual Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule 
(ROPS) and Administrative Budgets 2023-2024 for the Cities of Anaheim, Buena Park, Costa 
Mesa, Huntington Beach, Placentia, San Juan Capistrano, Santa Ana and the County of Orange. 

YES – Probolsky, Jones, Barfield, Franks, Kukreja, West, Yarbrough 
 NO – N/A 
 N/A – N/A 
 Absent – N/A 

Item 6e Fullerton 

This item was pulled by Board Member West. who asked La Habra staff to explain the 
Administrative Costs, ROPS amounts and plans for remaining obligations. Taylor Samuelson 
from the City of Fullerton reported that the city discussed with their attorneys and DOF on what 
would be appropriate to request for their Administrative Cost. Deputy City Manager of Fullerton 
Daisy Perez responded that Fullerton is currently working with 70 loans and that work to 
administer the loans is spread across agencies, however they would be willing to restructure staff 
and opened to diving in deeper to bring Administrative Costs back to 3%. Board Member Kukreja 
mentioned that he would like to see more detail next year with Fullerton ROPS. Board Member 
Barfield thanked Fullerton for their good faith efforts.  

Board Member West moved, and Vice Chairman Jones seconded to approve Resolutions 
Regarding Request by Successor Agencies for Annual Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule 
(ROPS) and Administrative Budgets 2023-2024 for the City of Fullerton. 

YES – Probolsky, Jones, Barfield, Franks, Kukreja, West, Yarbrough 
 NO – N/A 
 N/A – N/A 
 Absent – N/A 

*Item 6g La Habra (Item discussed after Closed Session)  



COMMENTS & ADJOURNMENT:  

PUBLIC COMMENTS:  

None. 

STAFF COMMENTS: 

Staff Member Tavoularis noted that the next meeting of the Countywide Oversight Board would be 
Tuesday, April 18, 2023, and that cities must submit their approved ROPS documents to the California 
Department of Finance by February 1, 2023. 

Chris Nguyen noted that the Governors COVID-19 Emergency Orders are set to expire at the end of 
February and that the Oversight Board will be going back to in-person meetings in April.  

BOARD COMMENTS: 

None.  

 *Board Member Barfield left the meeting after Board Comments. 

CLOSED SESSION 

CS-1. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION – INITIATION OF 
LITIGATION – Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(4): 
Number of Cases: One Case  

There was no reportable action. 

Item 6g La Habra   

This item was pulled by Board Member West who asked La Habra staff to explain the 
Administrative Costs changes. Jack Ponvanit from the City of La Habra reported that they looked 
at the Administrative Cost very closely this year to determine what truly was needed and decided 
to ask for half of what was requested last year. 

Board Member Yarbrough moved, and Board Member Kukreja seconded to approve Resolutions 
Regarding Request by Successor Agencies for Annual Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule 
(ROPS) and Administrative Budgets 2023-2024 for the City of La Habra. 

YES – Probolsky, Jones, Franks, Kukreja, West, Yarbrough 
 NO – N/A 
 N/A – N/A 
 Absent – Barfield 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Chairman Probolsky adjourned the meeting at 9:41 AM to a Regular Meeting on April 18, 2023, 8:30 AM 



 
 
_________________________ 
BRIAN PROBOLSKY 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTYWIDE OVERSIGHT BOARD 
 
 
  
__________________________       ____________ 
KATHY TAVOULARIS       DATE 
CLERK OF THE BOARD 
 



 

Orange Countywide Oversight Board 
 
  
Date: 4/18/2023 Agenda Item No. 4  
 
From: Staff to the Orange Countywide Oversight Board 
 
Subject: Contract for Dynamic Strategies LLC 
 
Recommended Action: 
Authorize and direct staff to sign contract with Dynamic Strategies LLC. 

 
 
Health and Safety Code §34179(j) specifies that the Auditor-Controller’s office is to provide staff support 
to the Oversight Board, and as such, when the Board was being formed in 2018, then-Auditor-Controller 
Eric Woolery designated Chris Nguyen as one of the staff for the Oversight Board.  He served in this role 
until March 2020 when he departed the Auditor-Controller’s office. 
 
Health and Safety Code §34179(o) specifies that the Oversight Board may contract with any public or 
private entity for additional support of its functions. 
 
At the April 2021 Oversight Board meeting, Chairman Brian Probolsky expressed interest in bringing Mr. 
Nguyen back as a consultant to the Oversight Board as it exited the startup phase and entered a new phase 
where it would deal with more complex matters with greater nuance.  Other Board members also expressed 
support for the idea. 
 
In June 2021, with the consent of the Chairman, the staff to the Oversight Board administratively executed 
a nine-month contract with Dynamic Strategies LLC, where Mr. Nguyen is one of the principals.  The initial 
nine-month term of the contract expired on March 15, 2022, but the contract included renewal options for 
four additional one-year terms.  At the February 2022 Oversight Board meeting, Board Member Anil 
Kukreja made a motion to approve a renewal through March 14, 2023, which was approved by the Board 
on a 7–0 vote.  Unfortunately, due to the lack of a February 2023 meeting, the contract has lapsed. 
 
Staff recommends that the Oversight Board approves a new contract with Dynamic Strategies retroactive 
to March 15, 2023, for a fourteen-month term concluding May 14, 2024, with renewal options for four 
additional one-year terms.  With each renewal expiring in May, renewals could be brought before the Board 
for a vote at its regular April meeting, unless the Board directs that renewals be done administratively by 
the Board’s staff. 
 
Under the contract, services for the Oversight Board from Dynamic Strategies include analyses and 
recommendations regarding Successor Agency assets and other enforceable obligations of Successor 
Agencies; working with the Oversight Board, Successor Agencies, California Department of Finance, and 
other entities to bring resolution to Successor Agency assets and other enforceable obligations; assisting 
the Oversight Board and its counsel negotiate actions regarding Successor Agency assets; supporting, 
analyzing, and making recommendations for the Oversight Board, its staff, and its counsel in efforts to 
work with the California Department of Housing and Community Development, California Department of 
Finance, Successor Agencies, and other entities with regard to the Surplus Land Act’s jurisdiction over 
Successor Agency assets; facilitating  the Oversight Board’s efforts to bring Successor Agencies to Last 
and Final ROPS and eventually dissolution; assisting Oversight Board subcommittees, as needed; and 
analyzing Annual ROPS, Amended ROPS, and Successor Agency administrative budgets to assist the 
Oversight Board and its staff, as needed. 
 
During the prior contract, Dynamic Strategies worked closely with staff and counsel of the Oversight Board 
regarding the dissolution of the Seal Beach and Cypress Successor Agencies; Successor Agency compliance 



 

with Long-Range Property Management Plans (LRPMPs); recommendations regarding the disposition of 
assets from various agencies; the myriad challenges of disposition of assets in light of the Surplus Land Act 
being amended by the Legislature to apply to Successor Agency assets; the Board’s ad hoc committee on 
asset disposition; various Successor Agency development agreements, bonds, promissory notes, and other 
enforceable obligations; communications with Successor Agencies; fulfilling information requests from 
various Successor Agencies, including the County of Orange Successor Agency, as well as other outside 
agencies, such as the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California; and all of the Board’s Closed 
Session items.  In addition to Mr. Nguyen, another principal from Dynamic Strategies, Cameron Wessel, 
has also provided services for the Oversight Board for this contract.  
 
At the commencement of the prior contract, the Board was also contracting with another company for 
various services.  The other company’s contract has since concluded, and consequently, Board staff at the 
Auditor-Controller’s office and Dynamic Strategies each expanded their responsibilities to absorb the duties 
previously conducted by the other company. 
 
At any time, if the Oversight Board wishes to terminate the contract, it may do without cause upon 30 days’ 
notice. 
 
Attachment 

• Proposed Contract Between the Orange Countywide Oversight Board and Dynamic Strategies LLC 



CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
COUNTYWIDE OVERSIGHT BOARD 

This Contract (hereinafter referred to as “Contract”) for Professional Services Countywide 
Oversight Board, is made and entered into as of the date fully executed by and between Dynamic 
Strategies LLC, hereinafter referred to as “Contractor,” and the Orange Countywide Oversight Board, 
hereinafter referred to as “BOARD”, which are sometimes individually referred to as “PARTY”, or 
collectively referred to as “PARTIES”.  

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, BOARD desires to Contract for Professional Services to assist in its duties of 
overseeing the Successor Agencies to the Redevelopment Agencies located within the borders of Orange 
County, California; and 

WHEREAS, the Contractor is particularly qualified to perform required services due to their 
expertise and their experience in connection with the Scope of Services provided herein; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, the PARTIES mutually agree as follows: 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

A. Governing Law and Venue:
This Contract has been negotiated and executed in the state of California and shall be governed
by and construed under the laws of the state of California. In the event of any legal action to enforce
or interpret this Contract, the sole and exclusive venue shall be a court of competent jurisdiction
located in Orange County, California, and the parties hereto agree to and do hereby submit to the
jurisdiction of such court, notwithstanding Code of Civil Procedure Section 394.  Furthermore, the
parties specifically agree to waive any and all rights to request that an action be transferred for
adjudication to another county.

B. Entire Contract:
This Contract, comprised of these terms and conditions, Attachments A and B, which are
incorporated herein, contains the entire Contract between the parties with respect to the matters
herein, and there are no restrictions, promises, warranties or undertakings other than those set
forth herein or referred to herein.  No exceptions, alternatives, substitutes or revisions are valid or
binding on Board unless authorized by Board in writing.  Electronic acceptance of any additional
terms, conditions or supplemental Contracts by any Board agent, including but not limited to
installers of software, shall not be valid or binding on Board unless accepted in writing by Board’s
designee.

C. Amendments:
No alteration or variation of the terms of this Contract shall be valid unless made in writing and
signed by the parties; no oral understanding or agreement not incorporated herein shall be binding
on either of the parties; and no exceptions, alternatives, substitutes or revisions are valid or binding
on Board unless authorized by Board in writing.

D. Taxes: 
Unless otherwise provided herein or by law, price quoted does not include California state sales or
use tax.



Orange Countywide Oversight Board 2 of 13

E. Delivery: 
Time of delivery of services is of the essence in this Contract.  Board reserves the right to refuse
services and to cancel all or any part of the services that do not conform to the prescribed Scope
of Work as outlined in Attachment A.

F. Acceptance/Payments:
Unless otherwise agreed to in writing by Board, 1) acceptance shall not be deemed complete
unless in writing and until all the goods/services have actually been received, inspected, and tested
to the satisfaction of Board, and 2) payment shall be made in arrears after satisfactory acceptance.

G. Warranty:
Contractor agrees to indemnify, defend and hold Board and its Indemnitees as identified in
paragraph “Z” below, and as more fully described in paragraph “Z,” harmless from liability, loss,
damage and expense, including reasonable counsel fees, incurred or sustained by Board by reason
of the failure of the Contractor’s services to conform to such warranties, faulty work performance,
negligent or unlawful acts, and non-compliance with any applicable state or federal codes,
ordinances, orders, or statutes, including the Occupational Safety and Health Act (OSHA) and the
California Industrial Safety Act.  Such remedies shall be in addition to any other remedies provided
by law.

H. Patent/Copyright Materials/Proprietary Infringement:
Unless otherwise expressly provided in this Contract, Contractor shall be solely responsible for
clearing the right to use any patented or copyrighted materials in the performance of this Contract.
Contractor warrants that any software as modified through services provided hereunder will not
infringe upon or violate any patent, proprietary right, or trade secret right of any third party.
Contractor agrees that, in accordance with the more specific requirement contained in paragraph
“Z” below, it shall indemnify, defend and hold Board and Board indemnitees harmless from any
and all such claims and be responsible for payment of all costs, damages, penalties and expenses
related to or arising from such claim(s), including, costs and expenses but not including attorney’s
fees.

I. Assignment:
The terms, covenants, and conditions contained herein shall apply to and bind the heirs,
successors, executors, administrators and assigns of the parties.  Furthermore, neither the
performance of this Contract nor any portion thereof may be assigned by Contractor without the
express written consent of Board or the Board’s designee.  Any attempt by Contractor to assign
the performance or any portion thereof of this Contract without the express written consent of Board
or its designee shall be invalid and shall constitute a breach of this Contract.

J. Non-Discrimination:
In the performance of this Contract, Contractor agrees that it will comply with the requirements of
Section 1735 of the California Labor Code and not engage nor permit any subcontractors to engage
in discrimination in employment of persons because of the race, religious creed, color, national
origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, marital status, or sex of
such persons.  Contractor acknowledges that a violation of this provision shall subject Contractor
to penalties pursuant to Section 1741 of the California Labor Code.

K. Termination:
In addition to any other remedies or rights it may have by law, Board has the right to immediately
terminate this Contract without penalty for cause or after 30 days’ written notice without cause,
unless otherwise specified.  Cause shall be defined as any material breach of contract, any
misrepresentation or fraud on the part of the Contractor.  Exercise by Board of its right to terminate
the Contract shall relieve Board of all further obligation.

L. Consent to Breach Not Waiver:
No term or provision of this Contract shall be deemed waived and no breach excused, unless such
waiver or consent shall be in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.



Orange Countywide Oversight Board 3 of 13

Any consent by any party to, or waiver of, a breach by the other, whether express or implied, shall 
not constitute consent to, waiver of, or excuse for any other different or subsequent breach. 

M. Independent Contractor:
For all purposes under this Contract, Contractor shall be considered an independent contractor and
neither Contractor, nor its employees or subcontractors shall be considered an agent or an
employee of Board for any reason. Contractor shall perform its obligations under this Contract
according to Contractor’s own means and methods of work which shall be in the exclusive charge
and under the control of Contractor, and which shall not be subject to control or supervision by
Board except as to the results of the work.  Neither Contractor, nor its employees or subcontractors
shall qualify for workers’ compensation, overtime, retirement, or any other benefits of any kind
through Board.

N. Performance Warranty: 
Contractor shall warrant all work under this Contract, taking necessary steps and precautions to
perform the work to Board’s satisfaction.  Contractor shall be responsible for the professional
quality, technical assurance, timely completion and coordination of all documentation and other
goods/services furnished by the Contractor under this Contract.  Contractor shall perform all work
diligently, carefully, and in a good and workmanlike manner; shall furnish all necessary labor,
supervision, machinery, equipment, materials, and supplies; and shall at its sole expense obtain
and maintain all permits and licenses required by public authorities, including those of Board, in
connection with performance of the work. If permitted to subcontract, Contractor shall be fully
responsible for such subcontractors’ compliance with the terms and conditions of this Contract and
for all work performed by subcontractors.

O. Insurance Requirements:
Prior to the provision of services under this Contract, the Contractor agrees to purchase all
required insurance at Contractor’s expense, including all endorsements required herein,
necessary to satisfy the Board that the insurance provisions of this Contract have been complied
with. Contractor agrees to keep such insurance coverage, Certificates of Insurance, and
endorsements on deposit with the Board during the entire term of this Contract. In addition, all
subcontractors performing work on behalf of Contractor pursuant to this Contract shall obtain
insurance subject to the same terms and conditions as set forth herein for Contractor.

Contractor shall not allow subcontractors to work if subcontractors have less than the level of 
coverage required by Board from Contractor under this Contract. It is the obligation of Contractor 
to provide notice of the insurance requirements to every subcontractor and to receive proof of 
insurance prior to allowing any subcontractor to begin work. Such proof of insurance must be 
maintained by Contractor through the entirety of this Contract for inspection by Board 
representative(s) at any reasonable time. 

All self-insured retentions (SIRs) shall be clearly stated on the Certificate of Insurance. Any self-
insured retention (SIR) in an amount in excess of Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000) shall 
specifically be approved by the Board’s counsel, or designee, upon review of Contractor’s current 
audited financial report. If Contractor’s SIR is approved, Contractor, in addition to, and without 
limitation of, any other indemnity provision(s) in this Contract, agrees to all of the following: 

1) In addition to the duty to indemnify and hold the Board harmless against any and all liability,
claim, demand or suit resulting from Contractor, its agents, employees or subcontractor’s
performance of this Contract, Contractor shall defend the Board at its sole cost and expense
with counsel approved by Board against same; and

2) Contractor’s duty to defend, as stated above, shall be absolute and irrespective of any duty
to indemnify or hold harmless; and

3) The provisions of California Civil Code Section 2860 shall apply to any and all actions to
which the duty to defend stated above applies, and the Contractor’s SIR provision shall be
interpreted as though the Contractor was an insurer and the Board was the insured.



Orange Countywide Oversight Board 4 of 13

If the Contractor fails to maintain insurance acceptable to the Board for the full term of this 
Contract, the Board may terminate this Contract. 

Qualified Insurer 

The policy or policies of insurance must be issued by an insurer with a minimum rating of A-
(Secure A.M. Best's Rating) and VIII (Financial Size Category as determined by the most 
current edition of the Best's Key Rating Guide/Property-Casualty/United States or 
ambest.com). It is preferred, but not mandatory, that the insurer be licensed to do business in 
the state of California (California Admitted Carrier). 

If the insurance carrier does not have an A.M. Best Rating of A-/VIII, the Board’s counsel retains 
the right to approve or reject a carrier after a review of the company's performance and financial 
ratings. 

The policy or policies of insurance maintained by the Contractor shall provide Commercial 
General Liability coverage with minimum limits of $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 
aggregate. 

Required Coverage Forms 

The Commercial General Liability coverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office (ISO) form 
CG 00 01, or a substitute form providing liability coverage at least as broad. 

Required Endorsements 

The Commercial General Liability policy shall contain the following endorsements, which shall 
accompany the Certificate of Insurance: 

1) An Additional Insured endorsement using ISO form CG 20 26 04 13 or a form at least as
broad naming the Orange Countywide Oversight Board, its officials, officers, agents
and employees as Additional Insureds, or provide blanket coverage, which will state AS
REQUIRED BY WRITTEN CONTRACT.

2) A primary non-contributing endorsement using ISO form CG 20 01 04 13, or a form at least
as broad evidencing that the Contractor’s insurance is primary and any insurance or self-
insurance maintained by the Orange Countywide Oversight Board shall be excess and non-
contributing.

All insurance policies required by this Contract shall waive all rights of subrogation against the 
Orange Countywide Oversight Board, its officials, officers, agents and employees when acting 
within the scope of their appointment or employment. 

Contractor shall notify Board’s designee in writing within thirty (30) days of any policy 
cancellation and ten (10) days for non-payment of premium and provide a copy of the 
cancellation notice to Board’s designee. Failure to provide written notice of cancellation may 
constitute a material breach of the Contract, upon which the Board may suspend or terminate 
this Contract. 

The Commercial General Liability policy shall contain a severability of interests clause also 
known as a “separation of insureds” clause (standard in the ISO CG 0001 policy). 

Insurance certificates should be forwarded to the Board’s designee. 

P. Changes:
Contractor shall make no changes in the work or perform any additional work without the Board’s
specific written approval, or that of the Board’s designee.



Orange Countywide Oversight Board 5 of 13

Q. Change of Ownership:
Contractor agrees that if there is a change or transfer in ownership of Contractor’s  business prior
to completion of this Contract, and the Board agrees to an assignment of the Contract, the new
owners shall be required under terms of sale or other transfer to assume Contractor’s duties and
obligations contained in this Contract and complete them to the satisfaction of the Board.

Board reserves the right to immediately terminate the Contract in the event the Board determines 
that the proposed assignee is not qualified or is otherwise unacceptable to the Board for the 
provision of services under the Contract. 

R. Force Majeure:
Contractor shall not be assessed with liquidated damages or unsatisfactory performance penalties
during any delay beyond the time named for the performance of this Contract caused by any act of
God, war, civil disorder, employment strike or other cause beyond its reasonable control, provided
Contractor gives written notice of the cause of the delay to Board within 36 hours of the start of the
delay and Contractor avails himself of any available remedies.

S. Confidentiality: 
Contractor agrees to maintain the confidentiality of all Board and Board-related records and
information pursuant to all statutory laws relating to privacy and confidentiality that currently exist
or exist at any time during the term of this Contract.  All such records and information shall be
considered confidential and kept confidential by Contractor and Contractor’s staff, agents and
employees.

T. Compliance with Laws:
Contractor represents and warrants that services to be provided under this Contract shall fully
comply, at Contractor’s expense, with all standards, laws, statutes, restrictions, ordinances,
requirements, and regulations (collectively “laws”), applicable to the services at the time services
are provided to and accepted by Board.  Contractor acknowledges that Board is relying on
Contractor to ensure such compliance, and pursuant to the requirements of paragraph “Z” below,
Contractor agrees that it shall defend, indemnify and hold Board and Board Indemnitees harmless
from all liability, damages, costs and expenses arising from or related to a violation of such laws.

U. Freight: 
Prior to the Board’s express acceptance of delivery of products, Contractor assumes full
responsibility for all transportation, transportation scheduling, packing, handling, insurance, and
other services associated with delivery of all products deemed necessary under this Contract.

V. Severability:
If any term, covenant, condition or provision of this Contract is held by a court of competent
jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions hereof shall remain
in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired or invalidated thereby.

W. Attorney Fees:
In any action or proceeding to enforce or interpret any provision of this Contract, each party shall
bear their own attorney’s fees, costs and expenses.

X. Interpretation:
This Contract has been negotiated at arm’s length and between persons sophisticated and
knowledgeable in the matters dealt with in this Contract.  In addition, each party had been
represented by experienced and knowledgeable independent legal counsel of their own choosing
or has knowingly declined to seek such counsel despite being encouraged and given the
opportunity to do so.  Each party further acknowledges that they have not been influenced to any
extent whatsoever in executing this Contract by any other party hereto or by any person
representing them, or both.  Accordingly, any rule or law (including California Civil Code Section
1654) or legal decision that would require interpretation of any ambiguities in this Contract against



Orange Countywide Oversight Board 6 of 13

the party that has drafted it is not applicable and is waived.  The provisions of this Contract shall 
be interpreted in a reasonable manner to affect the purpose of the parties and this Contract. 

Y. Employee Eligibility Verification:
The Contractor warrants that it fully complies with all Federal and State statutes and regulations
regarding the employment of aliens and others and that all its employees performing work under
this Contract meet the citizenship or alien status requirement set forth in Federal statutes and
regulations.  The Contractor shall obtain, from all employees performing work hereunder, all
verification and other documentation of employment eligibility status required by Federal or State
statutes and regulations including, but not limited to, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of
1986, 8 U.S.C. §1324 et seq., as they currently exist and as they may be hereafter amended.  The
Contractor shall retain all such documentation for all covered employees for the period prescribed
by the law. The Contractor shall indemnify, defend with counsel approved in writing by Board, and
hold harmless, the Board, its agents, officers, and employees from employer sanctions and any
other liability which may be assessed against the Contractor or the Board or both in connection
with any alleged violation of any Federal or State statutes or regulations pertaining to the eligibility
for employment of any persons performing work under this Contract.

Z. Indemnification:
Contractor agrees to indemnify, defend with counsel approved in writing by Board, and hold Board,
its individual Board members, officers, agents, and employees (“Board Indemnitees”) harmless
from any claims, demands or liability of any kind or nature, including but not limited to personal
injury or property damage, arising from or related to the services, products or other performance
provided by Contractor pursuant to this Contract.  If judgment is entered against Contractor and
Board by a court of competent jurisdiction because of the concurrent active negligence of Board or
Board Indemnitees, Contractor and Board agree that liability will be apportioned as determined by
the court.   Neither party shall request a jury apportionment.

AA. Audits/Inspections:  
Contractor agrees to permit the Board or the Board’s authorized representative (including auditors 
from a private auditing firm hired by the Board) access during normal working hours to all books, 
accounts, records, reports, files, financial records, supporting documentation, including payroll and 
accounts payable/receivable records, and other papers or property of Contractor for the purpose 
of auditing or inspecting any aspect of performance under this Contract.  The inspection and/or 
audit will be confined to those matters connected with the performance of the Contract including, 
but not limited to, the costs of administering the Contract.  The Board will provide reasonable notice 
of such an audit or inspection. 

The Board reserves the right to audit and verify the Contractor’s records before final payment is  
made. 

Contractor agrees to maintain such records for possible audit for a minimum of three years after 
final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is stipulated under this Contract or by 
law.  Contractor agrees to allow interviews of any employees or others who might reasonably 
have information related to such records.  Further, Contractor agrees to include a similar right to 
the Board to audit records and interview staff of any subcontractor related to performance of this 
Contract. 

Should the Contractor cease to exist as a legal entity, the Contractor’s records pertaining to this 
agreement shall be forwarded to the Board’s designee. 



Orange Countywide Oversight Board 7 of 13  

BB. Expenditure Limit:   
The Contractor shall notify the Board’s designee in writing when the expenditures against the 
Contract reach 75 percent of the dollar limit on the Contract. The Board will not be responsible for 
any expenditure overruns and will not pay for work exceeding the dollar limit on the Contract unless 
a change order to cover those costs has been issued. 
 

CC. Authority/Modification: 
The Parties represent and warrant that all necessary action has been taken by the Parties to 
authorize the undersigned to execute this Agreement and engage in the actions described herein. 
This Agreement may be modified by written amendments as recommended by the Board or its 
Counsel. The Board’s Counsel may execute any such amendment on behalf of the Board upon the 
Board’s prior approval. 

 
ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
1. Scope of Contract:  This Contract specifies the contractual terms and conditions by which 
 the Board will procure services from Contractor as further detailed in the Scope of Work, 
 identified and incorporated herein by this reference as “Attachment A”. 
  
2. Term of Contract: This Contract shall be effective retroactive to March 15, 2023, and shall be in 

effect for fourteen months, unless otherwise terminated by Board.  This Contract may be renewed 
as set forth in paragraph 3 below. 

 
3. Renewal: This Contract may be renewed by mutual written agreement of both Parties for four (4) 

additional one (1) year terms.  The Board does not have to give reason if it elects not to renew.   
 
4. Precedence:  The Contract documents consist of this Contract and its exhibits and attachments.  

In the event of a conflict between or among the Contract documents, the order of precedence shall 
be the provisions of the main body of this Contract, i.e., those provisions set forth in the recitals 
and articles of this Contract, and then the exhibits and attachments.  

 
5. Compensation: This is a fixed fee price Contract between the Board and Contractor for services 

provided in Attachment A – Scope of Work.  Compensation for services shall be as set forth in 
Attachment B – Cost/Compensation, attached hereto and made a part hereof. 
 

6. Disputes – Contract: 
 

A. The parties shall deal in good faith and attempt to resolve potential disputes informally. If the 
dispute concerning a question of fact arising under the terms of this Contract is not disposed of 
in a reasonable period of time, such matter shall be brought to the attention of the Board by 
way of the following process: 
 

1. The Contractor shall submit to the Board’s Counsel a written demand for a final decision 
regarding the disposition of any dispute between the parties arising under, related to, or 
involving this Contract, unless the Board, on its own initiative, has already rendered 
such a final decision. 
 

2. The Contractor’s written demand shall be fully supported by factual information, and, if 
such demand involves a cost adjustment to the Contract, the Contractor shall include 
with the demand a written statement signed by a senior official indicating that the 
demand is made in good faith, that the supporting data are accurate and complete, and 
that the amount requested accurately reflects the Contract adjustment for which the 
Contractor believes the Board is liable. 

 
B. Pending the final resolution of any dispute arising under, related to, or involving this Contract, 

the Contractor agrees to diligently proceed with the performance of this Contract, including the 



Orange Countywide Oversight Board 8 of 13

delivery of goods and/or provision of services. The Contractor’s failure to diligently proceed 
shall be considered a material breach of this Contract. 

C. Nothing in this Section shall be interpreted as being contrary to the California Government
Claims Act (Gov’t C. § 900, et. seq.)

7. Errors and Omissions: All reports, files and other documents prepared and submitted by
Contractor shall be complete and shall be carefully checked by the Contractor prior to submission
to the Board. Contractor agrees that Board review is discretionary and Contractor shall not assume
that the Board will discover errors and/or omissions. If the Board discovers any errors or omissions
prior to approving Contractor’s reports, files and other written documents, the reports, files or
documents will be returned to Contractor for correction. Should the Board or others discover errors
or omissions in the reports, files or other written documents submitted by the Contractor after Board
approval thereof, Board approval of Contractor’s reports, files or documents shall not be used as a
defense by Contractor in any action between the Board and Contractor, and the reports, files or
documents will be returned to Contractor for correction.

8. Gratuities: The Contractor warrants that no gratuities, in the form of entertainment, gifts or
otherwise, were offered or given by the Contractor or any agent or representative of the Contractor
to any officer or employee of the Board with a view toward securing the Contract or securing
favorable treatment with respect to any determinations concerning the performance of the Contract.
For breach or violation of this warranty, the Board shall have the right to terminate the Contract,
either in whole or in part, and any loss or damage sustained by the Board in procuring on the open
market any goods or services which the Contractor agreed to supply shall be borne and paid for by
the Contractor. The rights and remedies of the Board provided in the clause shall not be exclus ive
and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under the Contract.

9. Notices:  Any and all notices, requests demands and other communications contemplated, called
for, permitted, or required to be given hereunder shall be in writing with a copy provided to the
Board’s designee as identified below, except through the course of the parties’ project managers’
routine exchange of information and cooperation during the terms of the work and services.  Any
written communications shall be deemed to have been duly given upon actual in-person delivery,
if delivery is by direct hand, or upon delivery on the actual day of receipt or no greater than four (4)
calendar days after being mailed by US certified or registered mail, return receipt requested,
postage prepaid, whichever occurs first.  The date of mailing shall count as the first day.  All
communications shall be addressed to the appropriate party at the address stated herein or such
other address as the parties hereto may designate by written notice from time to time in the manner
aforesaid.

For CONTRACTOR: Name: Dynamic Strategies LLC 
Attn: Cameron Wessel 
Address: 2099 S. State College Blvd., Suite 600 

Anaheim, CA 92806 

For BOARD: Name: Orange Countywide Oversight Board 
Attn: Kathy Tavoularis 

Office of the Auditor-Controller 
Address: 1770 N. Broadway 

Santa Ana, CA 92706 

10. Reports and Meetings: The Contractor shall develop reports and any other relevant documents
necessary to complete the services and requirements as set forth in this contract.  The Board or its
designee and the Contractor will meet on reasonable notice to discuss the Contractor’s
performance and progress under this contract.  If requested, the Contractor and other project
personnel shall attend all Board meetings as required.  The Contractor shall provide such
information that is requested by the Board for the purpose of monitoring progress under this
Contract.



Orange Countywide Oversight Board 9 of 13

11. Termination – Orderly: After receipt of a termination notice from the Orange Countywide
Oversight Board, the Contractor may submit to the Board a termination claim, if applicable. Such
claim shall be submitted promptly, but in no event later than 60 days from the effective date of the
termination, unless one or more extensions in writing are granted by the Board upon written request
of the Contractor. Upon termination, Board agrees to pay the Contractor for all services performed
prior to termination which meet the requirements of the Contract, provided, however, that such
compensation combined with previously paid compensation shall not exceed the total
compensation set forth in the Contract. Upon termination or other expiration of this Contract, each
party shall promptly return to the other party all papers, materials, and other properties of the other
held by each for purposes of performance of the Contract.

12. Breach of Contract: The failure of the Contractor to comply with any of the provisions, covenants
or conditions of this Contract shall be a material breach of this Contract. In such event the Board
may, and in addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity, or otherwise specified in this
Contract:

a) Terminate the Contract immediately, pursuant to paragraph K herein;

b) Afford the Contractor written notice of the breach and ten (10) calendar days or such shorter
time that may be specified in this Contract within which to cure the breach;

c) Discontinue payment to the Contactor for and during the period in which the Contractor is
in breach; and

d) Offset against any monies billed by the Contractor but yet unpaid by the Board those monies
disallowed pursuant to the above.

13. Conditions Affecting Work: The Contractor shall be responsible for taking all steps reasonably
necessary to ascertain the nature and location of the work to be performed under this Contract
and to know the general conditions which can affect the work or the cost thereof. Any failure by
the Contractor to do so will not relieve Contractor from responsibility for successfully performing
the work without additional cost to the Board. The Board assumes no responsibility for any
understanding or representations concerning the nature, location(s) or general conditions made
by any of its officers or agents prior to the execution of this Contract, unless such understanding
or representations by the Board are expressly stated in the Contract.

14. Conflicts of Interest. Contractor presently has no interest including, but not limited to, other
projects or independent contracts, and shall not acquire any such interest
which would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of work required under this
Contract. Contractor shall not employ any person having any such interest in the performance of
this Contract.

15. Conduct of Contractor. Throughout the term of this Contract, Contractor shall inform Board of
all of Contractor's interests, if any, which are, or which the Contractor believes to be, incompatible
with any interests of the Board.

16. California Political Reform Act and Government Code Section 1090 Et Seq. Contractor
acknowledges that the California Political Reform Act (“Act”), Government Code section 81000 et
seq., provides that consultants hired by a public agency, such as Board, may be deemed to be a
“public official” subject to the Act if the consultant advises the agency on decisions or actions to
be taken by the agency. The Act requires such public officials to disqualify themselves from
participating in any way in such decisions if they have any one of several specified “conflicts of
interest” relating to the decision. To the extent the Act applies to Contractor, Contractor shall
abide by the Act. In addition, Contractor acknowledges and shall abide by the conflict of interest
restrictions imposed on public officials by Government Code section 1090 et seq.



Orange Countywide Oversight Board 10 of 13  

 
 
 

Contract Signature Page 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the PARTIES hereto have executed this CONTRACT the day and year first 
above written. 
 
 
 
Contractor:  Dynamic Strategies LLC 
 
 
NAME: _______________________________________ 
 
 
TITLE:  _______________________________________ 
 
 
SIGNATURE: _______________________________________ DATE: ______________________ 
 
 
 
Orange Countywide Oversight Board: 
 
 
NAME: _______________________________________ 
 
 
TITLE:  _______________________________________ 
 
 
SIGNATURE: _______________________________________ DATE: ______________________ 
 
 
 

Approved as to form 
Counsel to the Orange Countywide Oversight Board 
 

 
By_______________________  Date: ________________ 

Patrick K. Bobko 
Oversight Board Counsel 



Orange Countywide Oversight Board 11 of 13  

ATTACHMENT A 
 

SCOPE OF WORK 
 
 

Introduction 
 
Pursuant to California Health and Safety Code Section 34179(j), the Countywide Oversight Board provides 
oversight and direction for the 23 remaining of the 25 Successor Agencies to the Redevelopment Agencies 
located in Orange County (2 Successor Agencies have been fully dissolved). The Countywide Oversight 
Board has fiduciary responsibility to the holders of obligations and taxing entities that benefit from 
distributions of property tax revenue. Debts and contract obligations are paid through a mechanism called 
the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS). Each year, the Countywide Oversight Board must 
approve the ROPS for submission to the State Department of Finance by February 1, which then makes 
final determinations authorizing debt payments. Successor Agencies cannot dissolve until all enforceable 
obligations have been met, including final payment of bonds and disposal of assets. This contract will 
assist the Countywide Oversight Board with its duties under the dissolution law, Part 1.85 of Division 24 of 
the California Health and Safety Code. 
 
Scope of Services 
 
Contractor services shall include, but not be limited to, the following activities: 
 

• Provide analyses and recommendations on an ongoing basis regarding Successor Agency assets 
and other enforceable obligations of Successor Agencies 

• Work with the Oversight Board, Successor Agencies, California Department of Finance, and other 
entities to bring resolution to Successor Agency assets and other enforceable obligations  

• Help Oversight Board and its counsel negotiate actions regarding Successor Agency assets 
• Support, analyze, and make recommendations for the Oversight Board, its staff, and its counsel in 

their efforts to work with the California Department of Housing and Community Development, 
California Department of Finance, Successor Agencies, and other entities with regard to the 
Surplus Land Act’s jurisdiction over Successor Agency assets 

• Facilitate Oversight Board’s efforts to bring Successor Agencies to Last and Final ROPS and 
eventually dissolution 

• Assist Oversight Board subcommittees, as needed 
• Analyze Annual ROPS, Amended ROPS, and Successor Agency administrative budgets to assist 

Oversight Board and its staff, as needed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



Orange Countywide Oversight Board 12 of 13

ATTACHMENT B

COST/COMPENSATION

This is a fixed fee price agreement between the Board and Contractor for services provided in the Scope 
of Work.

1. COMPENSATION:

Contractor shall provide services for a fee of $3,625.00 per month.

The total amount of the initial term of this contract shall not exceed $32,625.00.

For services provided under this Contract and subject to the provisions of the Contract (including 
the Board’s right to terminate the Contract), the Board agrees to compensate the Contractor the 
fixed fee set forth below.  The Contractor agrees to accept same as compensation for services 
provided in Attachment A to this Contract and for performances by Contractor of all its duties and 
obligations hereunder.

The fixed fee set forth below shall include the fee and all expenses related to the performance of 
work and services required to meet the requirements in the Scope of Work, set forth more fully in
Attachment A.

Contract Period Fixed Fee
March 15, 2023 through May 14, 2024 (14-month period) $32,625
Renewable May 15, 2024 through May 14, 2025 $43,500
Renewable May 15, 2025 through May 14, 2026 $43,500
Renewable May 15, 2026 through May 14, 2027 $43,500
Renewable May 15, 2027 through May 14, 2028 $43,500

2. PAYMENT TERMS:

Contractor shall submit billing monthly in arrears.

The original billing statement(s) shall be submitted to:

Orange Countywide Oversight Board
Attention:  Kathy Tavoularis, Office of the Auditor-Controller
1770 N. Broadway
Santa Ana, CA 92706

Payment will be net 30 days after receipt of an invoice in a format acceptable to the Board and 
verified and approved by its designee and subject to routine processing requirements of the Board.
The responsibility for providing an acceptable invoice rests with the Contractor.

Billing shall cover services not previously invoiced.  The Contractor shall reimburse the Orange 
Countywide Oversight Board for any monies paid to the Contractor for services not provided or 
when services do not meet the Contract requirements.

Payments made by the Board shall not preclude the right of the Board from thereafter disputing 
any items or services involved or billed under this Contract and shall not be construed as 
acceptance of any part of the services.

63,000.00
54,000.00
54,000.00
54,000.00
54,000.00

63,000.00

4,500.00



Orange Countywide Oversight Board 13 of 13

3. Invoicing Instructions:

The Contractor will provide an invoice on Contractor’s letterhead for services rendered. Each
invoice will have a unique number and will include the following information:

1. Contractor’s name and address

2. Contractor’s remittance address

3. Board Contract number # __________________
4. Name or description of the services performed
5. Total current and cumulative monthly fees billed
6. Contractor’s Federal I. D. number

The responsibility for providing an acceptable invoice to the Board for payment rests with the 
Contractor. Incomplete or incorrect invoices are not acceptable and will be returned to the 
Contractor for correction.  The Auditor-Controller, or designee, is responsible for approval of 
invoices and subsequent submittal of invoices to the Auditor-Controller for processing of payment 
to the Contractor on behalf of the Orange Countywide Oversight Board. 



Orange Countywide Oversight Board 
 
Date: 4/18/2023 Agenda Item No. 5 
 
From: Staff of the Oversight Board 
 
Subject: Amendments to Board Policies and Procedures 
 
Recommended Action: 
Approve resolution adopting amendments to the policies and procedures. 
 
 
This resolution would adopt amendments to the policies and procedures for the Orange Countywide 
Oversight Board. 
 
These amendments include: 
• Addition of a “Cost Recovery, Allocation, and Reimbursement” section, specifying cost allocation 

within the RPTTF and setting policies for expenditures related to staff/vendor travel to Sacramento 
County 

• Specify election of Board officers and adoption of Board schedule 
• Explicitly authorize dissolution requests at January Board meetings 
• Include provision for agenda item submission if July Board meeting falls close to Independence Day 
• Update roster of Board members and successor agencies 
• Various minor changes and corrections to cross-references, wording, grammar, capitalization, and 

punctuation 
 
Attachments 
 

1. Resolution 
2. Text of Amendments 



Resolution No. 23-020 
 
 

 A RESOLUTION OF THE ORANGE COUNTYWIDE OVERSIGHT BOARD 
ADOPTING AMENDMENTS TO THE POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

 
 

WHEREAS, California Health and Safety Code Section 34179(e) requires all action 

items of the Orange County Countywide Oversight Board be accomplished by resolution; and 

WHEREAS, the Policies and Procedures further the Board’s ability to perform its 

fiduciary duty to holders of enforceable obligations and the taxing entities that benefit from 

distributions of property tax and other related revenues; and 

WHEREAS, the Policies and Procedures were adopted at the inaugural meeting of the 

Board on August 7, 2018 and then amended at the Board meetings of September 26, 2019, and 

April 21, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, amendments are necessary to codify a “Cost Recovery, Allocation, and 

Reimbursement” section, including setting policies and procedures regarding staff and vendor 

travel to Sacramento County; and 

WHEREAS, amendments are necessary to make various changes throughout the 

document to update practices, codify existing practices, and correct minor errors; and 

WHEREAS, amendments are necessary to update the roster of Board members and 

Successor Agencies; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE ORANGE COUNTYWIDE 

OVERSIGHT BOARD hereby approves the amendments to the Policies and Procedures of the 

Orange Countywide Oversight Board in the form presented, with the addition of the “Cost 

Recovery, Allocation and Reimbursement” section, updates to the roster of Board members and 

Successor Agencies, and sundry other minor changes, effective immediately. 



1  

ORANGE COUNTYWIDE OVERSIGHT BOARD  
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

 
 
Policy No. 2018-001 (Adopted by Resolution 18-002, Amended by Resolution 20-023___) 

 

COUNTYWIDE OVERSIGHT BOARD POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
 
Table of Contents 
I. Introduction 

 
II. Meeting Schedule 

A. Regular Meetings 
B. Special Meetings 

 
III. Submission and Review of Agenda Items 

A. Designated Contact 
B. Submission Requirement 
C. Submission Procedures 
D. Review Procedures 

 
IV. Distribution of Agenda 

A. Notice and Posting of Agenda 
B. Distribution of Agenda 

 
V. Reporting of Actions taken Taken at Countywide Oversight Board Meeting 

A. Minutes 
B. Processing Actions and Resolutions 
C. Notification of Actions and Resolutions 

 
VI. Cost Recovery, Allocation, and Reimbursement 

A. Cost Allocation 
B. Oversight Board Expenses 
C. Vendor Payments 
D. Designated Official Expenses 
E. Travel to Sacramento County 

 
Attachments 
Exhibit A -– Roster of Members and Successor Agencies  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2  

 

I. Introduction 
 
This constitutes the Policies and Procedures Manual (the “Policies and Procedures”) for the Orange 
Countywide Oversight Board for Orange County (the “COB”). 

 
As required under Section 34179(j) of the Health and Safety Code, effective July 1, 2018, the 
Countywide Oversight Board was formed and succeeded all oversight boards previously created 
pursuant to Section 34179(a) of the Health and Safety Code, which ceased to exist by operation of 
law, effective July 1, 2018. 

 
The Countywide Oversight Board shall have jurisdiction over each successor agency (each a 
“Successor Agency” and collectively the “Successor Agencies”) with territorial jurisdiction within 
incorporated or unincorporated territorial borders of the County of Orange (the “County”). As of 
July 1, 2018, the Countywide Oversight Board has jurisdiction over the twenty-five (25) successor 
agencies listed in the Roster of Successor Agencies, attached hereto within Exhibit A. 

 
The COB shall be governed in accordance with the applicable provisions of Part 1.85 of Division 
24 of the California Health and Safety Code (the “Dissolution Act”), as such may be amended 
from time to time. 

 
The COB shall consist of the seven (7) individuals appointed to the COB in accordance with Article 
1 Section 2 of the Bylaws and in accordance with Section 34179(j) of the Health and Safety Code, 
as such may be amended from time to time (each a “Member” and collectively the “Members”). 

 
The Members shall have fiduciary responsibilities to holders of enforceable obligations (as defined 
in Section 34171 of the Health and Safety Code) and the taxing entities that benefit from 
distributions of property tax and other revenues pursuant to Section 34188 of the Health and Safety 
Code. 

 
Pursuant to Section 34179(j) of the Health and Safety Code, the COB shall be staffed by the Orange 
County Auditor-Controller (the “CAC”), which shall recover directly from the Redevelopment 
Property Tax Trust Fund all of its costs incurred related to the COB, the Successor Agencies, or 
any other portion of the Dissolution Act.  
 
These Policies and Procedures are intended to provide the Successor Agencies with the rules and 
procedures for the administration and implementation of the duties of the COB and to guide 
Auditor-Controller staff in implementing those duties of the COB. 

 
  



3  

II. Meeting Schedule 
 

A. Regular Meetings 
 
The COB shall meet regularly at the City Council Chambers at Orange City Hall Rancho Santiago 
Community College District, or at such other locations as the Countywide Oversight Board may 
designate by resolution or in the notice of call of any special meeting.  At the regular meeting in 
September, the COB shall elect its Chairman and Vice Chairman and shall also adopt the schedule 
of regular meetings for the following calendar year. 

 
B. Special Meetings 

 
Special meetings for the purpose of transacting any business specified in the call and notice for the 
meeting may be held upon the call of the Chair, the Auditor-Controller, or of any three Members 
of the COB.  Notice of the meeting shall be sent to each Member at least twenty-four (24) hours 
before the time specified notice for a special meeting. 

 
C. Records 

 
The CAC shall designate a staff person to function as Clerk of the Board (“Clerk”), who shall keep 
the records of the COB, and shall act as secretary at the meetings of the Oversight Board. The 
Clerk of the Board shall prepare minutes of meetings of the Oversight Board, shall keep a record 
of the meetings in a journal of proceedings of the COB, and shall attest to and/or countersign all 
documents of the COB, all in accordance with these Policies and Procedures, and all applicable 
laws. All requests for documents shall be processed by the Clerk. The Clerk may charge for a copy 
of records in accordance with the California Public Records Act and all other applicable laws. 

 
  



4  

III. Submission and Review of Agenda Items 
 

A. Designated Successor Agency Contact 
 
Each Successor Agency shall designate, in writing and deliver written notice to the Designated 
Official or the Clerk of the Board, an official representative (the “Successor Agency 
Representative”) who shall have the authority to represent the Successor Agency before the COB, 
the CAC, the State Controller, the California Department of Finance (the “DOF”), or any other 
public body. The notice to the Clerk of the Board shall include the Successor Agency 
Representative’s name, title, telephone number and email address. 

 
B. COB Contact 

 
The CAC shall designate an individual to serve, as the primary contact for communications with 
the CAC (“Designated Official”). The designated Successor Agency Representative, and all others 
lawfully authorized to represent a Successor Agency, shall direct all correspondence and inquiries 
to the Designated Official. 

 
The Designated Official for the COB shall be: 

 
Kathy Tavoularis  

Office of the Orange County Auditor-Controller 
1770 North Broadway 
Santa Ana, CA 92706 
Phone: (714) 834-2458 

kathy.tavoularis@ac.ocgov.com 
 
The CAC shall notify each Successor Agency in writing of any changes to the Designated Official. 

 
C. Submission Requirements 

 
Items for consideration of the COB may be submitted by a member of the COB, the Designated 
Official, or by the Successor Agency Representative only. 

 
Each item that is being submitted for consideration by the COB must be submitted using the staff 
report template issued by the CAC and posted to the COB’s website, which can be found at 
http://ocauditor.com/ob/. The staff report must identify the subject of the action, state the 
recommended motion, state the date of the COB Meeting on which the Successor Agency desires 
for the item to be considered, a description of the impact on taxing entities, the Successor Agency 
staff contact(s) for the item, and must include all supporting documentation for the requested 
action. If the Successor Agency is requesting the item be heard at a special meeting, the Successor 
Agency must also specify the reason why a special meeting is needed. 

 
A Successor Agency shall be responsible for preparing the staff reports, resolutions and all related 
files, spreadsheets and any additional documents reasonably necessary for the COB to make a 
determination for a particular action. Successor Agencies must use the template staff reports and 
resolutions of the COB which can be accessed at the COB’s website which can be found at 

mailto:kathy.tavoularis@ac.ocgov.com


5  

http://ocauditor.com/ob/.  The CAC shall be responsible for noticing the COB, but each Successor 
Agency shall be responsible for complying with all other notices required under the Dissolution 
Act. 
 
The Successor Agency must submit the applicable staff report and resolution along with the 
supporting documents listed below: 

 
Requested Action/Approval Required Documents 
ROPS/Administrative Budget Template Documents: 

• Staff Report re: Approval of Annual ROPS and 
Administrative Budget 

• Resolution Approving Annual ROPS and 
Administrative Budget 

 
Supporting Documents: 
• Annual ROPS 
• Annual Administrative Budget 
• Successor Agency Governing Board Resolution 

Approving Annual ROPS and Administrative Budget 
• Two Prior Years’ Approved Annual ROPS and 

Administrative Budget 
• Two Prior Years’ Letters from the Department of 

Finance 
Amendment to ROPS Template Documents: 

• Staff Report re: Approval of Amendment to ROPS 
• Resolution Approving Amendment to ROPS 
 
Supporting Documents: 
• Amended ROPS 
• Successor Agency Governing Board Resolution 

Approving Amended ROPS 
• Current Year Letter from the Department of Finance 

Last and Final ROPS  Template Documents: 
• Staff Report re: Approval of Last and Final ROPS 
• Resolution Approving Last and Final ROPS with 

Administrative Budget  
 
Supporting Documents: 
• Last and Final ROPS with Administrative Budget 
• Successor Agency Governing Board Resolution 

Approving Last and Final ROPS with 
Administrative Budget  

• Two Prior Years’ Letters from the Department of 
Finance 

http://ocauditor.com/ob/


6  

Amendment to Enforceable 
Obligation 

Template Documents: 
• Staff Report re: Approval of Amendment to 

Enforceable Obligation 
• Resolution Approving Amendment to Enforceable 

Obligation 
 
Supporting Documents: 
• Copy of original Original Enforceable Obligation 
• Copy of document Document amending Amending 

Enforceable Obligation 
• Successor Agency Governing Board Resolution 

Approving Amendment to Enforceable Obligation 
 

Repayment Schedule for 
Enforceable Obligation 

Template Documents: 
• Staff Report re: Approval of Repayment Schedule for 

Enforceable Obligation 
• Resolution Approving Repayment Schedule for 

Enforceable Obligation 
 
Supporting Documents: 
• Copy of original Original Enforceable Obligation 
• Copy of Repayment Schedule for Enforceable 

Obligation 
• Successor Agency Governing Board Resolution 

Approving Repayment Schedule for Enforceable 
Obligation 

Property Transfer under 
approved Long-Range Property 
Management Plan 

Template Documents: 
• Staff Report re: Approval of Property Disposition 

pursuant to approved LRPMP 
• Resolution Approving Property Disposition pursuant to 

approved LRPMP 
 
Supporting Documents: 
• Copy of approved Approved LRPMP 
• Copy of Conveyance Documents 
• Successor Agency Governing Board Resolution 

Approving Conveyance 
• Compensation Agreement (as applicable) 
• Public Hearing Notice 



7  

Property Transfer under Section 
34181(a) of the Health and 
Safety Code 

Template Documents: 
• Staff Report re: Approval of Property Disposition 

pursuant to Section 34181 of the Health and Safety 
Code 

• Resolution Approving Property Disposition pursuant to 
Section 34181 of the Health and Safety Code 

 
Supporting Documents: 
• Copy of Conveyance Documents 
• Successor Agency Governing Board Resolution 

Approving Conveyance pursuant to Section 34181 of 
the Health and Safety Code 

• Compensation Agreement (as applicable) 
• Public Hearing Notice 

 
Miscellaneous Template Documents: 

• Template Staff Report 
• Template Resolution 

 
Supporting Documents: 
• Copy of applicable Applicable documentsDocuments 

Bond Refunding/Refinancing The Successor Agency and the Designated Official will 
coordinate required documentation. 

 

Depending on the item submitted, the Designated Official may request additional supporting 
documents. Please note that the “Template Staff Report” and “Template Resolution” under the 
Miscellaneous Action can be used for action items other than those specifically provided for in 
this section. 

 

D. Submission Procedures 
 
All items must be submitted to the Designated Official by electronic mail. Each Agenda Item 
Submission Request Form and all accompanying documents must be submitted in one single email 
addressed to the Designated Official and/or to ob@ac.ocgov.com. The resolution and staff reports 
submitted for any one particular item must be in Microsoft Word format, supporting documents 
may be submitted in PDF format. 

 
Submission must be made no later than 5 p.m. Pacific Time, not less than eight (8) calendar days 
from before the proposed date of the Countywide Oversight Board meeting that the Successor 
Agency desires the item be considered.  In the event that Martin Luther King, Jr. Day, 
Independence Day, or Labor Day falls eight (8) calendar days before a regular meeting of the 
Countywide Oversight Board, items may be submitted no later than 5 p.m. Pacific Time, not less 
than seven (7) calendar days from the date of the proposed date of the Countywide Oversight Board 
meeting that the Successor Agency desires the item be considered. 

 
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the COB Meetings for January will be limited to 
consideration of actions related to the adoption of recognized obligation payment schedules 

mailto:ob@ac.ocgov.com


8  

(ROPS), and related items necessary to the adoption of a Successor Agency’s recognized 
obligation payment scheduleROPS, a Successor Agency’s request to dissolve, and final 
dissolution of a Successor Agency. No other business will be considered during the January 
COB Meetings, except for items that might otherwise be heard in a special meeting. The 
submission deadline for the January meetings will be dependent on the statutory date that controls 
the DOF’s ROPS submission deadlines. 
 
No later than October 1 of each year, the Designated Official shall distribute to all Successor 
Agencies the scheduled regular meetings for the next calendar year. 

 
The Designated Official shall set the date by which submissions for special meetings will be due 
before the Special Meeting will be held. 

 
E. Review Procedures 

 
The CAC staff and COB counsel, if any, shall conduct the initial review of all items requested to 
be placed on an agenda of the Countywide Oversight Board. During the initial review, the CAC 
staff may consult with Oversight Board counsel, Successor Agency Representative, Successor 
Agency counsel, and other parties in the review of the items. 

 
The CAC staff or COB counsel may request additional information and documentation to the 
Successor Agency Representative. Should there be questions or changes in the items submitted for 
consideration, the Designated Official will coordinate with the Successor Agency Representative 
and the Successor Agency Representative must respond in writing. Failure to timely respond may 
result in exclusion of the item from the agenda. 

 
After the review and approval by COB legal counsel, the Designated Official will submit the item 
for inclusion on the agenda for the next regularly scheduled COB meeting, or special meeting as 
applicable. 

 
  



9  

IV. Distribution of Agenda 
 

A. Notice and Posting of Agenda 
 
Agendas for regular meetings of the COB will be posted not less than 72 hours or 2 business days, 
whichever is longer, prior to the regularly scheduled COB Meeting. 
 
Agendas for special meetings of the COB will be posted not less than 24 hours prior to the special 
meeting. 

 
In addition to posting the agenda at the COB meeting location, the Designated Official will post 
the agenda on the COB’s website. 

 
In the event that a Member will not be attending a COB meeting, the Member shall be responsible 
for notifying the Clerk of the Board and the Designated Official of their absence. 

 
The Successor Agency will be responsible to provide all notices required under the Dissolution 
Act. 

 
B. Public Comments 

 
Each agenda will include an opportunity for the public to address the COB. The COB may adopt 
reasonable regulations, including time limits, on public comments. Such regulations should be 
enforced fairly and without regard to speakers’ viewpoints. 

 
Written comments on Agenda items must be submitted not less than 24 hours prior to the COB 
meeting when the item will be considered. Any written comments received by a Successor Agency 
must be provided to the COB. 

  



10  

V. Reporting of Actions taken Taken at Countywide Oversight Board Meeting 
 

A. Minutes 
 
The Clerk shall act as the ex officio secretary of the COB and shall be responsible for preparing 
the minutes of the meetings of the COB. 

 
Minutes will need to be ratified at the next regular or special meeting of the COB. Meeting minutes 
will be kept by the Clerk of the Board until the dissolution of the COB, at which point the meeting 
minutes shall be transferred to the Orange County Archives. 

 
B. Processing Actions and Resolutions 

 
The Designated Official will coordinate with Clerk to process all actions of the COB expeditiously. 
Executed resolutions will be made available within seven (7) business days of the meeting on which 
the action was approved. The Designated Official or Clerk shall transmit to the Successor Agency 
Representative, via email or by posting on secure website, all action items and supporting 
documents. 

 
C. Inquiries by Third Parties and Meet and Confer 

 
The Designated Official will inform the Successor Agency Representative of any requests, 
questions and communications by any third parties that the Designated Official receives with 
regard to any particular item submitted for consideration by the COB. The Successor Agency is 
responsible for addressing all inquiries and questions directly related to their action items. The 
Successor Agency shall provide copies of all responses to questions and inquiries to the Designated 
Official who shall be responsible for providing the same to the Members of the COB. 

 
The Successor Agency shall submit their specific items to the DOF. 

 
The COB will not participate in the meet and confer process associated with any particular action 
of the COB that a Successor Agency requests to invoke with the DOF.  

  



11  

VI. Cost Recovery, Allocation, and Reimbursement 
 
A. Cost Allocation 

 
To the extent possible, the CAC will recover costs from the portion of the Redevelopment Property 
Tax Trust Fund (“RPTTF”) allocated for a specific Successor Agency when the costs incurred are 
specifically related to that agency.  When it is impractical to allocate costs to a specific agency, then 
the CAC shall recover costs from the RPTTF as a whole. 
 

B. Oversight Board Expenses 
 
The Designated Official shall submit the expenses of the COB to the CAC for recovery from the 
RPTTF and shall recommend whether each expense should be allocated to the whole RPTTF or the 
portion of the RPTTF allocated for a specific Successor Agency.  The expenses related to a regular 
meeting of the COB shall be allocated to the whole RPTTF.  The Designated Official shall 
recommend to the CAC whether the expenses of a special meeting of the COB should be allocated to 
the whole RPTTF or the portion of the RPTTF allocated for a specific Successor Agency. 
 

C. Vendor Payments 
 
Payments to a COB vendor should generally be made with funds from the whole RPTTF.  However, 
in the event that a vendor focuses an unusual portion of their time on a specific Successor Agency 
during an invoice period, then the Designated Official shall recommend to the CAC the appropriate 
portion of the payment to that vendor for that particular invoice period be drawn from the RPTTF 
allocated for a specific Successor Agency. 
 

D. Designated Official Expenses 
 
The expenses incurred by the Designated Official should generally be reimbursed by the CAC with 
funds from the whole RPTTF.  However, if an expense is incurred that is related to a specific 
Successor Agency/Agencies, then the Designated Official shall be reimbursed by the CAC with funds 
from the portion of the RPTTF allocated for that specific Successor Agency/Agencies.  Expenses 
under this paragraph shall include mileage at the standard rate set by the Internal Revenue Service, 
parking fees, meeting room rental costs, meals and drinks of all meeting attendees, and any related tips 
and taxes for the above.  Alcoholic beverages, fines, repair of vehicular damage, and repair of property 
damage shall not be reimbursed from any portion of the RPTTF.  No reimbursement will be issued if 
submitted to the CAC more than six (6) months after it was incurred. 
 

E. Travel to Sacramento County 
 
An individual traveling to Sacramento County on COB business shall be reimbursed for flights 
between John Wayne Airport (“SNA”) and Sacramento International Airport (“SMF”), but no 
reimbursement will be provided for optional premium services, such as First Class, Business Select, or 
EarlyBird Check-In.  An individual may elect to fly via another airport(s) or utilize another mode of 
transportation, but that individual shall be reimbursed not more than the lesser amount of a) their 
actual expenses or b) an amount equivalent to the cost of a round-trip nonstop flight between SNA and 
SMF on the same day(s).  Non-valet parking, taxi, ridesharing services, and public transportation will 
be reimbursed.  Car rental expenses in Sacramento County will also be reimbursed, but only one 
person may rent a car if multiple individuals are traveling concurrently on COB business.  For lodging 



12  

in Sacramento County, the most economical and practical accommodations available, considering the 
purpose of travel and other relevant factors, will be reimbursed. Meals and incidental expenses in 
Sacramento County will be reimbursed, provided that no alcoholic beverages or entertainment may be 
reimbursed.  Related taxes and tips for any of the above will be reimbursed.  No fines will be 
reimbursed.  Any reimbursement under this paragraph shall be drawn by the CAC from the funds of 
the portion of the RPTTF allocated for the specific Successor Agency/Agencies that necessitated this 
trip by the individual(s) on behalf of the COB. If it is impractical to allocate costs to a specific agency, 
then the reimbursements under this paragraph shall be drawn by the CAC from the funds of the 
RPTTF as a whole.  No reimbursement for travel expenses will be issued if submitted to the CAC 
more than six (6) months after the end of the trip.



A-1  

EXHIBIT A 
 

ROSTER OF MEMBERS AND SUCCESSOR AGENCIES 
 

Roster of Countywide Oversight Board Members 
 

Appointing Body Member Name 
County Board of Supervisors Steve Franks 

City Selection Committee Hon. Steve Jones 

Independent District Selection Committee Hon. Brian Probolsky 
 

Member to Represent Schools, appointed by 
Superintendent of Schools 

Dean West, CPA 

Member to Represent Community College 
Districts in Orange County, appointed by 
Chancellor of the California Community Colleges 

Hon. Phillip E. Yarbrough 

Member of the Public, appointed by 
County Board of Supervisors 

Louis McClure Anil Kukreja 
 

Recognized Employee Organization Charles Barfield 



A-2  

Roster of Successor Agencies 
 
 

• County of Orange 
• City of Anaheim 
• City of Brea 
• City of Buena Park 
• City of Costa Mesa 
• City of Cypress – Dissolved 1/24/2023 
• City of Fountain Valley 
• City of Fullerton 
• City of Garden Grove 
• City of Huntington Beach 
• City of Irvine 
• City of La Habra 
• City of La Palma 
• City of Lake Forest 
• City of Mission Viejo 
• City of Orange 
• City of Placentia 
• City of San Clemente 
• City of San Juan Capistrano 
• City of Santa Ana 
• City of Seal Beach – Dissolved 1/18/2022 
• City of Stanton 
• City of Tustin 
• City of Westminster 
• City of Yorba Linda 

 


	Agenda 2023-4-18
	1. Call to Order
	2. Pledge of Allegiance

	Minutes - RDA Oversight Board 2023-1-24
	MASTER Item 4 Dynamic Strategies Contract Renewal
	Item 4 1 Dynamic Strategies Contract Renewal - Staff Report
	Item 4 2 Dynamic Strategies Contract (2023-04-10) - Partially Signed

	MASTER Item 5 Policies & Procedures Amendment
	Item 5 1 Agenda Item Cover Sheet - Policies and Procedures Amendment
	Item 5 2 Agenda Item Resolution - Policies and Procedures Amendment
	Item 5 3 Current Policies and Procedures Third Amendment
	Policy No. 2018-001 (Adopted by Resolution 18-002, Amended by Resolution 20-023___)
	I. Introduction
	II. Meeting Schedule
	III. Submission and Review of Agenda Items
	IV. Distribution of Agenda
	V. Reporting of Actions taken Taken at Countywide Oversight Board Meeting
	EXHIBIT A



	NAME: Christopher Nguyen
	TITLE: Co-Founder/Principal
	DATE: 04/10/2023
	NAME_2: 
	TITLE_2: 
	DATE_2: 
	Date_3: 


